
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 6:00 P.M. MONDAY APRIL 15, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be 

subject to public disclosure.   
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any 

item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting April 1, 2019. 
 
2. Motion to Approve Board & Commission Appointments / Reappointments (Carolyn 

Anderson – Historic Preservation Board). 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

3. Motion Accepting the Quotation and Purchase Order for Crime Reporting Software from 
Shield Technology Corporation and Mainstay System Inc.  

 
4. Motion to Approve Parks and Recreation Summer Employee Hires. 
 
5. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Resolution 1799 – Approving Change Order #8 for $7,586.67 for the Lift Rental 
Expense Related to Work Stoppage, Additional Installation Labor, and Material 
Transportation related to the Pavilion Panels. 

 
2. Resolution 1800 – A Resolution Approving a Reimbursement Agreement with the 

Iowa Department of Transportation for Relocation Water and Force Main Lines 
associated with the widening of I-80 project.   

 
3. Resolution 1801 – Approving Purchase Authorization of a not-to-exceed amount 

of $ 2,143 for the replacement of City Council Tablets with the intent to repurpose 
the old working tablets for other city uses.    

 
4. Resolution 1802 – A Resolution Entering into an Officer Training Reimbursement 

Agreement with Zachary Murdock.  
 

H. Joint Business Meeting with the City of West Branch and the West Branch 

Community School District.   
 

1. Discussion Item: Facilities Update (Bond Referendum) 
 

2. Discussion Item: Joint Grass Cutting Proposal and any other service sharing 
opportunities (Marketing) 

 
3. Discussion Item: Potential Concepts for Middle School Reuse 

 
4. Discussion Item: High School Crosswalk and/or Turning Lane (Resulting from 

Nearby KLM Development) 
 

5. Discussion Item:  Update on City Development(s) and Growth Plans 
 

6. Discussion Item:  28e Agreement associated with the Rose Bowl Press Box 
construction. 

 

I. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not 

approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               April 1, 2019  
Council Chambers                                                                       7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

Mayor Laughlin then invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the 

Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Jordan Ellyson, Jodee Stoolman, Nick 

Goodweiler and Brian Pierce were present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City 

Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, Police, City Attorney Kevin Olson, Chief Mike 

Horihan, Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin and Public Works Director 

Matt Goodale. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting March 18, 2019. 

Motion to Approve Board & Commission Appointments / Reappointments (Jan Jacobson – Library Board). 

Motion to Approve $500 Donation to the Lower Cedar Watershed Management Authority as start-up Funds. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
EXPENDITURES     4/1/2019  
    
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      577.78  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC     ROCK      3,415.17  
CONLEY & JENNA NASH    BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,040.81  
DEMCO      OFFICE SUPPLIES     275.41  
EAST CENT INTERGOVT ASSOCIATION    GRANT WRITING SERVICE    1,000.00  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL    SUPPLIES      286.83  
KNOCHE, REBECCA     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICE/BUILDING INCENTIVE PMT 972.21  
KOCH OFFICE GROUP     COPIER MAINTENANCE    317.10  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,268.85  
MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR    MT HOREB PUB LIB:LOST BOOK    45.00  
OLSON, KEVIN D     LEGAL SERVICES     1,500.00  
PITNEY BOWES INC     POSTAGE METER RENTAL    180.00  
PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC    SERVICE - PUBLIC SERVICE BLDG    75.00  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC.     SERVICE-WAPSI PARK     192.00  
QUILL CORP     COMPUTER SUPPLIES     47.24  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS    CHEMICALS     244.00  
UPS      SHIPPING      22.82  
USA BLUE BOOK     SUPPLIES      200.70  
WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED    CHEMICALS     2,515.00  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL   ADJUSTMENT     992.00  
WEST BRANCH FAMILY PRACTICE    DRUG TESTING     40.00  
WEST BRANCH FORD     REPAIR PARTS     113.98   
TOTAL            15,321.90  
    
PAYROLL      3/22/2019      54,577.74  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS     
UPS      SHIPPING      22.82  
VERIZON WIRELESS     WIRELESS SERICE     800.75  
CATHERINE STEEN     UNIFORM      50.00  
MEDIACOM     CABLE SERVICE     41.90    
TOTAL            915.47   
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          70,815.11   

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND    28,014.96  
022   CIVIC CENTER    43.29  
031   LIBRARY    6,429.93  
110   ROAD USE TAX    6,829.46  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   12,743.13  
600   WATER FUND    9,939.91  
610   SEWER FUND    6,814.43  
    
GRAND TOTAL    70,815.11 
 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Stoolman, 

Goodweiler, Pierce, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
    

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Third Reading, Ordinance 764 – Rezoning a portion of The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, of real 

property from R-1 to R-2 Residential District. /Move to action. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 764 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION, PART FOUR, OF REAL PROPERTY 

FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-2 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. (“KLM”) has petitioned the City of West Branch for a zoning district amendment for 
properties located in the Meadows Subdivisions, said parcel being legally described as:   

 

 A PORTION OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF PARCEL G, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 
I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE 

SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST 

FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 
CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 44 OF THE GREENVIEW ESTATES SUBDIVISION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT 

NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE S1º19’13”E, 195.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE 86º46’30”E, 
315.69 FEET; THENCE S3º13’30”E, 24.96 FEET; THENCE 143.10 FEET ALONG A 216.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST 

(CHORD BEARING S21º52’40”E, 141.10 FEET);  
THENCE S40º56’32”E, 967.89 FEET; THENCE S49º03’24”W, 50.37 FEET; THENCE 89.97 FEET ALONG A 300.00 FOOT RADIUS 

CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING S57º38’54”W, 89.63 FEET); THENCE N40º56’32”W, 961.68 FEET; THENCE 

S88º40’13”W, 77.11 FEET; THENCE S01º19’47”E, 127.44 FEET; THENCE N82º46’48”W, 37.29 FEET;  
THENCE S88º40’47”W, 140.28 FEET; THENCE N01º19’13”W, 351.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.(the “Parcel). 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an R-2 Residential District, in place of an R-1 
Residential District; and 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; 

and 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published notice thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa : 

 
 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to show the Parcel being located in a R-2 

Residential District in place of R-1 Residential District.  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication as by law provided. 
 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication 
shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this 1st day of April, 2019. 
 

 Read First Time: March 4, 2019 

 Read Second Time: March 18, 2019  
 Read Third Time: April 1, 2019 

       ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve 3rd reading of Ordinance 764.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Ellyson, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   



 

 

Public Hearing:  Proposed Development Agreement with EMV Holdings, LLC (aka Little Lights) which includes 

annual appropriations of tax increment rebates. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the public 

hearing at 7:05 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1797 – Approving a Development Agreement with EMV Holdings, LLC (aka Little Lights) which 

includes annual appropriations of tax increment rebates. /Move to action. 

City Attorney Olson clarified that the agreement allows for up to $150,000 in tax rebates to the developer over a 

ten year period.  The agreement will not exceed $150,000 (or $15,000 per year) and the agreement ends after ten 

years unless the Council chooses to change the provisions of the agreement to extend it. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1797.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Ellyson, 

Miller, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.  

  

Resolution 1798 – Approving Change Order #7 for work at Cubby Park to convert remaining exterior site work 

from “Completion Date” contract to “Working Days” contract. / Move to action.  

Pierce wanted assurance that the change from completion date to working days contract would in fact hold the 

contractor accountable if further deadlines were missed.  Cody Buelt, Fehr Graham said if the thirty four working 

days were exceeded, then liquidated damages would be assessed to the project.  Buelt said that Russell and 

Goodale would be monitoring the progress and reporting to Fehr Graham who will be providing updates to the 

Council. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1798.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Miller, 

Ellyson, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1799 – Approving Change Order #8 for $7,586.67 for the lift rental expense related to work stoppage, 

additional installation labor and material transportation related to the pavilion panels. / Move to action. 

Jones said he requested a breakdown for the change order from Fehr Graham who was working with the 

contractor on obtaining.  Jones suggested that this item be tabled until the information was received. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to table Resolution 1799 for more information.  AYES:  Ellyson, Miller, 

Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
 
Discussion:  Regarding replacing the tablets / City Council paperless packet devices – a review of options.    

Shimmin presented several tablet replacement options to the Council per their request from the last meeting.  A 

few members have been having difficulties with their current tablets which are more than five years old.  

Shimmin asked if the Council preferred more of a reading device versus a laptop.  The consensus was that a 

reading device was preferred, however a larger screen would make viewing plats easier.  Shimmin said he would 

do some more research and provide options and costs at the next meeting.   
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported that the facility plan for the waste water treatment plant is expected from Veenstra & Kimm within 

the next couple of weeks.  Early estimates indicate the plant could cost the City between five to twelve million 

dollars.  Jones also shared some agenda items to be discussed at the next joint City Council / School Board 

meeting scheduled for April 15th.  He reminded the Council about an upcoming nuisance conference to be held in 

Iowa City on May 15th.  Jones said that Mayor Laughlin, Miller, Horihan, Brick and himself would be attending.   

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson said he was working with Cedar’s Edge and getting the final plat documents recorded.  He said he was also 

working with Loethen Ridge Estates on their final plat as well as working on the sidewalk agreement for Brian 

Shay’s housing project.   

 

STAFF REPORTS  

None. 



 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Laughlin asked Goodale if plans had been made for the drainage issue at Heritage Square.  Goodale replied that 

he has met with Lynch Excavating and they will be doing some additional tiling and adding a storm sewer intake 

to redirect the water away from the Hoover House.  Laughlin asked Jones to reach out to the Hoover Foundation 

to see if they would provide a donation to Hoover’s Hometown Days to cover the expense of the stage on park 

ground.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 7:52 p.m.  

       

 

 

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Board & Commission Appointments / 

Reappointments – (Carolyn Anderson – Historic Preservation Board). 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy Clerk, Leslie Brick 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Historic Preservation (3 years):  Appointment, Honorary Member (non-voting) Carolyn 

Anderson, term to expire 12/31/2022   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion Accepting the Quotation and Purchase Order for Crime 

Reporting Software from Shield Technology Corporation and Mainstay 

Systems Inc.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This was a high Priority Goal in the 2019 – 2020 budget.  The Police Department has found 

budget saving in the current 2018 – 2019 budget.  Therefore, it is the intention to spend out of 

the current budget year $5,451.00; the balance would also account for the required 10% down 

payment required as a part of accepting this Quotation and Purchase Order.  The balance of the 

total cost of $21,896.00 will be paid from 2019 – 2020 budget (after July 1st). 
 
The first part of the project is pay for the server, install the server, pay for additional hardware 

and pay for additional licensing fees.  Mainstay will be responsible for this first part of the 

project.  The cost for this part of the project is $5,451. The hope is that we pay for this part of 

the project with funds from this fiscal year.  This part of the project has already started.  
 
The second part of this project is to install and upgrade to the “Shieldware” reporting. This would 

also include, additional licensing, the annual subscription fee and all the transfer of all past digital 

reports.   The cost of this would be $16,445.00.  The major part of this expense is the transfer of 

old reporting data.  It is required for the city to post 10%,   of the quote before the work can get 

started. 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 
 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
March 1, 2019 
 
West Branch Police Department 
Attn: Chief Mike Horhan  
105 S 2nd Street 
West Branch, IA 52358 
 
Dear Chief: 
 
Mainstay Systems, Inc. (MSI) is pleased to submit this revised price quotation to the West Branch 
Police Department. Quote is for software for vehicle network connection to the Cedar County Sheriff’s 
Office.   This quote also has software/hardware required to upgrade current server.  MSI will honor 
these prices for the next 30 days.     
 
NetMotion Mobility – Windows device license (5-pack)   $1,155.00 
 
Microsoft 2016 Remote Desktop Service - device license (5-pack)   $822.00 
 
Microsoft Server 2016 standard edition (operating system)    $926.00 
 
Dell T320 32GB memory upgrade    $200.00 
 
Dell 1TB 7200rpm 3.5” 6GB/s SAS hard drive w/dell sled  3 x 130.00 $390.00 
 
WatchGuard T-35 w/3-yr basic security suite (Firewall for branch office to Cedar SO)  $1,328.00 
 
Installation costs     $630.00 
 
Thank you for considering Mainstay Systems, Inc. as your computer equipment provider. If you have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kevin W. Mackin 
Mainstay Systems, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Parks and Recreation Summer Employee Hires. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

West Branch Parks and Recreation received several applications for the positions of summer 

youth counselor and sport site supervisor. Interviews and reference checks were conducted in 

March.  All of the positions pay $12.00.   

 

The sport site supervisor will primarily be responsible for daily maintenance of the ball fields 

and sand volleyball courts.  The sport site supervisor will do weekly playground inspections.  He 

will also mow the parks and fields as necessary. He reports to the Parks and Recreation director, 

however, will attend the Public Works for weekly safety meetings. The sport site supervisor will 

have a variety of hours to accommodate all the programs up to 40 hours a week.  

 

Camp counselors will be primarily be responsible for daily management of all drop-in programs, 

swim lessons, playground programs, camps, active adventures, and other programs.  They will 

work with current staff to plan and evaluate programs.  They report to the Parks and Recreation 

director. The camp counselors will also work a variety of hours up to 40 hours a week. 

 

 

 

(Hire 3 camp counselors and 1 sport site supervisor) 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 
 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

Parks and Recreation Department 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

113 N 1st Street • PO Box 218 • West Branch, Iowa 52358 

(319) 930-0393 • Fax (319) 643-2782 • www.westbranchiowa.org • melissa@westbranchiowa.org 

 
 
 

Summer Park and Recreation Staff 

To: West Branch City Council 

From: Melissa Russell, West Branch Parks and Recreation Director 

Subject: Debra Lund, Allison Simpson, and Isabel Bowman for Summer Youth Counselor and 

Levi Kleinmeyer for Sport Sit Supervisor 

Deb Lund currently works for the West Branch Community School District as a preschool 

paraeducator and office staff.  Prior to working at the West Branch Community School 

District, she provided home daycare.  She is also active in 4H.  She excels working with 

variety of children in different settings.  She has an associate degree with a major in early 

childhood education.  She will be able to start work June 1st.  

 

Isabel Bowman is a student at the University of Iowa studying sport and recreation 

management.  She is a current member of the Iowa Women’s Rowing Team at the University.  

She has worked at various sports camps throughout the years.  She enjoys outdoor recreation 

and plays and coaches a multitude of sports. She will start work May 28th. 

 

Allyson Simpson is a senior at Simpson College studying education.  She currently works at a 

before and afterschool program in Indianola, is an education educator and a JV basketball 

coach for Simpson College.  In the summer of 2018, she worked for the Iowa City Parks and 

Recreation as a summer camp counselor. She will be able to start work June 1st. 

 

Levi Kleinmeyer is a senior at West Branch High School and a West Branch volunteer 

firefighter.  He also works for Corridor Drywall.  He has experience working with mowers, 

skid loaders, and various tools.  Next year he will be attending Kirkwood Community College. 

He will be able to start working a few hours on the weekends in April.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:melissa@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 5 



 

 

 
 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1799 – Approving Change Order #8 for $7,586.67 for the Lift 

Rental Expense Related to Work Stoppage, Additional Instillation Labor 

and Material Transportation related to the Pavilion Panels. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

This change order for work at Cubby Park is recommended in order to reflect additional 

payment for removal of installed polycarbonate panels on the south side of the Pavilion, 

transporting panels to and from the city shop for application of the decal film, and additional 

lift rental required for completing this work. 

 

 

The exhibit included with the change order is a Change Order Request provided by Needham 

Excavating Inc. 
 
 

 

We requested a further break-down of cost and were forwarded the document marked 

“attachment 1” this item still presents $4,825.00 for “polycarbonate panels” which there is no 

further explanation for this expense. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction from City Council 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1799 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #8 FOR $7,586.67 FOR THE LIFT 

RENTAL EXPENSE RELATED TO WORK STOPPAGE, ADDITIONAL 

INSTILLATION LABOR AND MATERIAL TRANSPORTATION RELATED TO THE 

PAVILION PANELS. 
 

 

  
 WHEREAS, the installation of the polycarbonate panels to allow for natural light into the 

Pavilion was deemed to be too transparent and the city directed the removal of the materials installed; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council chose to have a decal film applied to the interior of the panels 

prior to installation; and  

  

 WHEREAS, as a result that installation had already commenced when this preference was 

discovered, there was additional expenses incurred; and  

 

 WHEREAS, due to weather conditions and the requirement of the film application to have the 

materials applied above freezing and in dry conditions, the panels were transported by the contractor to 

the city shop and back to the project site after the film was applied; and 

  

 WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. is requesting payment for the removal of installed 

polycarbonate panels, transporting panels to and from the city shop for application of the decal film, and 

additional lift rental required for completing this work. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa approves the change order #8 for $7,586.67 relating to the terms and explanations of this resolution.   

 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 15th day of April, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

  

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1800 – A Resolution Approving a Reimbursement Agreement 

with the Iowa Department of Transportation for Relocation Water and 

Force Main Lines associated with the widening of I-80 project.   

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 
Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 2 

 

This agreement would allow the city to get full reimbursement for the cost associated with 

the relocation of water and force main lines associated with the I-80 widening project. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE OF DEVELOPER: 

 

 

 

       By:_______________________________ 

       Erin Morrison-Vincent, Manager 

        

        

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF ______________________: 

 

 On this ____ day of _________________, 2018, this document was executed by Erin 

Morrison-Vincent, as Manager of EMV Holdings, LLC. 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1800 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR RELOCATION WATER AND 

FORCE MAIN LINES ASSOCIATED WITH THE WIDENING OF I-80 PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT) is preparing plans for 

widening Interstate 80 that will include removal of the interstate bridges over the abandoned 

railroad right-of-way; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a box culvert will be placed along the abandoned railroad right-of-way to 

provide a below grade crossing of Interstate 80; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Installation of the box culvert will be in a location that is currently occupied 

by City utilities including a 10” sanitary sewer force main, a 16” sanitary sewer force main, and 

a 12” potable water line; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the utilities will need to be relocated to avoid conflict with the box culvert 

and placed inside a steel casing pipe from right-of-way to right-of-way of the interstate; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Iowa DOT would like to enter into a utility agreement to have the City of 

West Branch relocate the utilities by November 2020; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Iowa DOT will reimburse the City for cost associated with the relocation 

water and sewer utilities currently estimated at $452,300 which includes engineering services 

associated with design and construction phase engineering services; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to move forward this agreement in order to meet desired 

project timelines provided by Iowa Department of Transportation.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa that the aforementioned agreement with the Iowa Department of Transportation be and the 

same is hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor and City Administrator are directed to execute 

said agreement on behalf of the City.   

 

Passed and approved this 15th day of April, 2019. 

 

 

  __________________________________ 

  Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1801 – Approving the Purchase Authorization of a not-to-

exceed amount of $2,143 for the replacement of City Council Tablets with 

the intent to repurpose the old working tables for other City uses.   

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Shimmin, Library & Information Technology Director 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The city council discussed the topic of new tablets at the April 1, 2019 city council meeting.  

Recommendation was to look at replacing all tablets with the suggestion that a larger surface be 

explored in the process.   

 

Suggested possibilities are given on subsequent pages.  The not-to-exceed estimate is based on 

the high end tablet selection, carrying cases and taxes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

Below are the two Android tablets presented to the council last week.  I believe both of these 

tablets will likely work fine for the council’s needs, but would probably recommend the 

Samsung for higher resolution which should make it easier to read text in the council packets.  

 

In regards to the larger screen, these are primarily found on higher end tablets like the Apple 

iPad Pro which the council can, of course, decide to purchase, but the lowest price I could find 

for a new, non-used tablet of this kind was around $550.   

 

To achieve a larger screen while keeping the price comparable, my suggestion would be a 

convertible Chromebook like the one on the right.  This would provide a 11.6” screen, though 

the resolution is lower than the middle tablet.  It would likely change how packets are 

distributed, though not any more difficult.  It would also likely require that we create or require 

each council member to have their own Google account.   

 

Lenovo Tab 4  Samsung Galaxy Tab A 

Lenovo Chromebook C330  

2-in-1 Convertible 

 

 

 

 

Platform: Android 

Cost: $159 

Specifications 

Screen Size: 10.1” 

Resolution: 1280x800 

Processor: 1.4GHz Quad Core 

Storage: 32GB (microSD can be 

added) 

Platform: Android 

Cost: $199 

Specifications 

Screen Size: 10.1” 

Resolution: 1920x1200 

Processor: 1.6GHz Octa Core 

Storage: 16GB (microSD can be 

added) 

Platform: ChromeOS 

Cost: $249 

Specifications 

Screen Size: 11.6” 

Resolution: 1366x768 

Processor: 2.1 GHz 

Storage: 64GBGB 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1801 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AUTHORIZATION OF A NOT-TO-

EXCEED AMOUNT OF $2,143 FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF CITY COUNCIL 

TABLETS WITH THE INTENT TO REPURPOSE THE OLD WORKING TABLES 

FOR OTHER CITY USES. 
 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch has adopted several paperless policies; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has forgone replacing their out dated tablets for two years 

in order to secure other budget priorities; and  

  

 WHEREAS, there has been several break-downs and technical issues that have affected 

the City Council’s ability to receive timely information and provide timely review of documents; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, City Council have reviewed several tablet / lite lab tops; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the not exceed amount of $2143is an estimate based on 7 tablets at the high 

end of the selection presented to City Council, new carrying cases, and an estimate of the 

anticipated sales taxes for said equipment. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa approves the authorization of the not to exceed amount of $2,143 relating to the 

terms and explanations of this resolution.  Further, the Mayor and City Administrator are directed 

to execute said agreement on behalf of the City.   
 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 15th day of April, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1802 – A Resolution Entering into an Officer Training 

Reimbursement Agreement with Zachary Murdock.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police 

DATE:  April 9, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Zachary Murdock has been a dedicated certified reserve police for the City of West Branch for 

the last two years. He is committed to be a WBPD Officer and now lives in the City of West 

Branch.  Mr. Murdock took the police written test and scored 100 percent. He is prepared to sign 

an employee agreement that he would reimburse the city of any training costs if he should leave 

the employment of West Branch within a 4 year period.  A Declining scale would be used should 

this departure occur.   Zachary currently paid $19.50 dollars an hour prior to completion of the 

academy and then his salary will be increased (to the wage of our last patrol officer) to $22.90.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

  

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A”  

 

 The following is an estimate of Training Costs for Zack Murdock for attendance and 

training at the Iowa Law Enforcement Academy: 

 

 Tuition    $6,240.00 

 Meals Fee   $   826.50 

 Uniform fees   $   225.00 

 Taser training   $   225.00 

 

 TOTAL REIMBURSABLE COSTS:    $7,516.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1802 

 

A RESOLUTION ENTERING INTO AN OFFICER TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH ZACHARY MURDOCK 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch has hired Zachary Murdock as a Police Officer in West 

Branch; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has prepared an officer training reimbursement 

agreement which requires City approval from the City Council; and  

   

 WHEREAS, based on the terms of the training reimbursement agreement, the 

aforementioned officer will reimburse the City should he leave before four years of service. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa approves the authorization of the aforementioned officer training reimbursement 

agreement be and the same is hereby approved by City Council of the City of West Branch.  

Further, the Mayor and City Administrator are directed to execute said agreement on behalf of 

the City.   
 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 15th day of April, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: School District Facilities Update (Bond Referendum) 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Marty Jimmerson, Superintendent 

DATE:  April 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Back in October, West Branch Community Schools asked for feedback about the past bond 

referendum as well as what citizens saw as the most critical needs in the School district.  This 

discussion is anticipated to cover the outcomes of these efforts and introspection on the next 

steps and strategies as we move forward to an anticipated upcoming bond issue.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Informational / Seek Further Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Discussion Item 1 

Joint Business Meeting 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Joint Grass Cutting Proposal and Any Other Service 

Sharing Opportunities (Marketing). 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Marty Jimmerson, Superintendent 

DATE:  April 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

In the effort to join resources where it makes sense and serves as a win / win for both agencies 

the School District and the City of West Branch have been open to finding ways to combine 

resources.  Grass cutting was a measure proposed from the School District administration to 

investigate ways the City could in a limited scope handling the mowing of select key portion(s) 

of the school district grounds.  In exchange the school district would forgive the estimated 

$54,202.05 owed by the City for the Poplar / Library Parking Lot project. 
 
Potential Benefits for the School District: 

This joint agreement would help the district save money in the short-term. The school district is 

also interested in a long- term partnership with the city that could provide future cost savings 

while meeting some of our mowing needs. 

 

Potential Benefits for the City: 

With the anticipated new Cubby Park coming online in the 2019.  A joint agreement could allow 

the city the ability to bring on full time / part time staff earlier than we anticipated and/or would 

have budget for.  The first year of Cubby Park we are using as a gauging / forecasting year, 

having the resources to provide more grounds keeping will allow the City to retool faster to the 

needs of new services. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Informational / Seek Further Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Discussion Item 2 

Joint Business Meeting 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Potential Concepts for Middle School Reuse 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Marty Jimmerson, Superintendent / Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

This is intended to be a brainstorming discussion.  Idea(s) that have informally been mentioned 

range from a Community Center to a YMCA operated swimming pool. 

 

We would like the discussion to start with a list of ideas being gathered with ever elected 

official offering one or two suggestions of potential use(s).  The suggestions will be used for 

basic investigation and for research basis only.  We hope by our next meeting in the fall we 

will have more information as to the general interest for further preliminary efforts. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Informational / Seek Further Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Discussion Item 3 

Joint Business Meeting 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: High School Crosswalk and/or Turning Lane 

(Resulting from Nearby KLM Development). 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

As the Meadows move forward with their last phase(s) and develop gets closer to the High 

School certain topics and understandings regarding the connection of properties should be 

clarified.  With the anticipation of new streets and new families in the adjacent neighborhood, 

the question of turning lanes and/or other traffic calming measures, a crosswalk; and/or 

connecting road way on the adjacent high school property have be topics of conversation. 

 

The intent of this discussion is to get some mutual understanding as to the viability of these 

options or others should the discussion produce other options.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Informational / Seek Further Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Discussion Item 4 

Joint Business Meeting 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Update on City Development(s) and Growth Plan 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator  

DATE:  April 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

KLM (Meadows phase 4) 

 

Golf Course (Cedar’s Edge / Little Lights) 

 

Loethen Ridge 

 

Pedersen Valley (part 3, phase1) 

 

Northside Condos 

 

23.28 acre Planned Unit Development (north of I-80 / BP Site) 

 

Downtown East Redevelopment (former Croell Redi-mix site)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Informational / Seek Further Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Discussion Item 5 

Joint Business Meeting 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 15, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: 28e Agreement Associated with the Rose Bowl Press 

Box construction. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  April 10, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As a part of the reconstruction of the Press Box at the Little Rose Bowl the city was requested 

to permit construction within the Right-of-way of Oliphant Street (the portion which was 

otherwise used as parking).  The purpose of this 28e Agreement is to set forth the duties and 

obligations of the City and the School in connection with the construction of the project by the 

school. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Direction – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

28E AGREEMENT  

 

 THIS AGREEMENT entered into by and between the City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 

N. Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (hereafter referred to as the “City”); and the West 

Branch Community School District, 148 N. Oliphant Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 

(hereafter referred to as “School”). 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the West Branch Community School District 

has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to reconstruct the press box at the Little Rose 

Bowl on Oliphant Street (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School has requested that the Project be constructed in part on the 

Oliphant Street right-of-way; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to allow the School to construct the Project within 

said right-of-way; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City and School to enter into a 28E Agreement 

to Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of this 28E Agreement is to set forth the  

duties and obligations of the City and School in connection with the construction of the Project 

by the School. 

 
2. CONSIDERATION.  It is hereby expressly acknowledged by both  

the City and School that construction of the Project by the School and the payment in part by 

the City in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement constitutes 

mutual and sufficient consideration to enter into this Agreement. 

 
3. SEPARATE ENTITY.  Further, it is hereby noted that no separate  

legal entity shall be created by this Agreement and the West Branch City Council and Board of 

Directors of the West Branch Community School District. 

 
4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES. 
 

A. City shall grant to the School, a license to use the Oliphant Street right-of-way, in the 

form attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” to allow the School to construct the Project in said right-of-

way. 
 

B.  The School shall pay for the entirety of the construction of the Project. 
 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect from the approval and execution of the Agreement by the School 

and the City, until the completion of the Project by the School.  After the Project has been 



 

 

constructed, the terms of the License Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until 

terminated in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement. 

 

 7.   NOTICES. 
 

 All notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed 

delivered on the date of placing the notice in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, to the following 

address: 

 

  For the School: 

 

  West Branch Community Schools 

  148 N. Oliphant Street 

  West Branch, Iowa 52358 

  ATTN:  Superintendent 

 

  For the City: 

 

  City of West Branch 

  110 N. Poplar Street 

  West Branch, Iowa 52358 

  ATTN:  City Administrator 

 

 8.   INDEMNITIES.  Each party to this Agreement expressly agrees to save and hold 

the other party, its employees and agents, harmless from any and all claims filed against both 

or either party arising from the performance of the duties and obligations under this 

Agreement.   

 

9.   FILING.  The Board Secretary of the School shall file this Agreement  

with the Iowa Secretary of State’s office as required by Section 28E.8 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 

Executed and approved this _____ day of ________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

CITY: 

 

______________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

Executed and approved this _____ day of ____________________, 2019. 

 

SCHOOL: 

 

__________________________________ 

Julie Sexton, Board President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Angie Klinkhammer, Board Secretary 

 

 


